
 

1 
 

Minutes 

Essex County Wetlands Board 

109 Cross St., Tappahannock, VA, 

 Meeting of September 28, 2023 

6:00 PM 

A meeting of the Essex County Wetlands Board was held on September 28, 2023, in the School 

Board Meeting Room at 109 Cross St., Tappahannock, Virginia, with the following present: 

Present: 

Jeff Howeth – Chairman 
Nate Parker IV 

Kevin Goff 

Robbie Howeth 

Barry Bates  

 
Absent: 

Bunky Davis 
 
Also present: 

Kelly McKnight, Planning and Zoning Office Manager 
Jay Woodward, VMRC 
 
CALL TO ORDER 

Chairman Howeth called the meeting of the Essex County Wetlands Board to order. 

ROLL CALL 

Ms. McKnight called the roll.  A quorum was met. 

AGENDA 

Chairman Howeth stated that they only have one public hearing.  

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Chairman Howeth asked if there was a recommendation for approval of the minutes from the 

August 24, 2023, meeting.  

Mr. Parker made a motion to approve the minutes. Mr. Bates seconded the motion. AYES:  5 

NAYES: 0 ABSENT: 1 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 



 

2 
 

VMRC # 23-1907 – Gordon Fletcher 

Roberto Cazares, 8362 NC HWY 41 W, Richlands, NC, representing Gordon Fletcher.  They are 

proposing to construct two (2) low-profile timber groins, extending a maximum of 48 feet 

channelward of mean high water. 

Chairman Howeth asked the question are you adding new groins, not replacing the groins? Mr. 

Cazares said “correct” they are adding new groins. 

Chairman Howeth asked if his intent was to do the step effect or even line.  Mr. Cazares said 

that it is the even line. 

Mr. Woodward stated that he visited the site today and the tides were high but, in the 

recommendation, he would make sure it says low profile groins. 

Chairman Howeth said that neither adjacent property owners objected to the project.   

Chairman Howeth said to follow Mr. Woodwards recommendation to say low-profile groin. 

Mr. Goff made the motion to approve two (2) low-profile groins. 

Mr. Bates seconded it. 

AYES: 5 NAYES:0 ABSENT:1 



 

3 
 



 

4 
 



 

5 
 



 

6 
 



 

7 
 



 

8 
 



 

9 
 



 

10 
 



 

11 
 



 

12 
 



 

13 
 



 

14 
 



 

15 
 



 

16 
 



 

17 
 



 

18 
 



 

19 
 



 

20 
 



 

21 
 



 

22 
 



 

23 
 



 

24 
 



 

25 
 



 

26 
 



 

27 
 



 

28 
 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

There will not be a meeting in November due to the Thanksgiving Holiday.  The next meeting 

will be on December 7, 2023.  After that the next meeting will be in January at the regular date 

and time. 

OLD BUSINESS 

VMRC #23-1509 – Sherry Bryant 

Chairman Howeth said that where we left off at the last meeting was with more than one 

question.  The questions were we in limits of jurisdiction because the drawings didn’t say where 



 

29 
 

we were and second question, how far out in front of the concrete culvert?  Some of the board 

members have either gone out to the site or have seen pictures.  Chairman Howeth said that 

with the 36” old style well size culvert, one needs disrepair unless there is something under the 

pier that we can’t see, and the little ones are missing entirety and one or two are busted up.  

Chairman Howeth said that the discussion led to where we would like to see the vinyl seawall 

tucked in to as tight as it can be to what is there. 

Chairman Howeth stated that Roberto Cazares did this one as well. 

Roberto Cazares said that he updated the drawings a lot and apologized for not being at the 

previous meeting.  He said that he was in Texas and was trying to do this over the phone.  Some 

of the board members visited the site even though he was not there.  Roberto said that tidal 

waters always touched the culvert.  Roberto had notes but he wasn’t aware of the culvert in 

front of the main ones, so he didn’t include them in the previous drawings.  The updated 

drawings do include them.  Roberto said that the contractor is planning on removing them, so 

they won’t even be in the equation.  The contractor will use a sledge hammer and remove them 

from the water.  The vinyl seawall will go directly in front of it.  Roberto said that in the notes 

and drawings he stated 2 feet, but it is actually not going to be that.  It is going to be 

immediately in front. 

Chairman Howeth said he thinks 12 inches would be reasonable and that would make everyone 

happy, and it doesn’t matter if you show all the little ones or not.  He said you can write typ for 

typical on the drawings. 

Chairman Howeth asked the board if there was anything else. 

Mr. Goff asked the question of the discussion of the fill, and it is sand fill.  He also said he was 

making the case that we have the authority that 2 feet or less doesn’t affect jurisdiction.  

Chairman Howeth stated that we got what we wanted and has asserted jurisdiction. 

Jay Woodward (inaudible) 

Mr. Goff made a motion to approve the revisions of the drawings to show the secondary culvert 

structures that are dilapidated will be removed.  The new vinyl sea wall will be no more than a 

foot in front of the primary culvert structures that are there and will be back filled with sand. 

Mr. Parker seconded. 

AYES: 5 NAYES:0 Absent 1 

VMRC #23-1001 – Kim Southerland 

Chairman Howeth said that the application was approved based on Bunky making a motion and 

all voted on the revised drawings.  There was a discrepancy statement made to allow purchase 

of wetlands credits from some other place and if you recall the story was there was a drainfield 



 

30 
 

line was 10 feet behind the old bulkhead. Chairman Howeth went to look at it and it was under 

a foot and half of water, so he sent it to Ernie Sadler to a Safe, Adequate, and proper and sent 

that to the health department for their review.  When the health department went down there 

it turned out that there was no drainfield there.  

Mr. Woodward visited the site.    

Chairman Howeth said that Ms. Havens has done what she was asked to do. 

Chairman Howeth said Ms. Havens has raised a good question as to whether we should have a 

discussion if we should have that type of mitigation. The story in the past tried to minimize as 

much and then use as little square footage and make it on the site. Chairman Howeth said that 

the world has changed and there are credits out there and you should plan on this, and I don’t 

think that we will get to it until January but maybe do a little research on it ourselves and we 

should have a thoughtful conversation in the coming months where someone can actually buy 

tidal credits. 

Mr. Goff said here is my first question …Where is the pressure coming from to even raise the 

question of mitigation? Was there any real wetland here?  It’s a plant or two not anything 

remotely to high quality wetlands as defined in the regulations.  Mr. Goff states that he is a 

spirit of the law not a letter of the law.  Why are we getting into mitigation in the first place 

unless there is something that we are genuinely concerned with.  

Jay Woodward (inaudible not at the microphone) 

Mr. Woodward said that most boards such as Middlesex charge a fee of 50 cents per sq foot, 

and some boards do not charge anything.  Mr.  Woodward said it’s up to the board whether 

they want to charge. 

Mr. Goff said there was a case about four years ago that he was supposed to be taking a stand 

on and a guy bought a piece of property that a sea wall had failed and then the plants started 

growing.  VMRCs position vegetative or not we have a wall that has failed and water behind it 

and a wetland was created. Whether it is vegetative or not we have an obligation to ask for 

mitigation. 

Jay Woodward (inaudible not at the microphone) 

Mr. Goff asked the question so the only option for mitigation is mitigation bank? If a seawall 

failed and wasn’t repaired in any timely manner resulted suddenly a new jurisdiction tract and 

if a wall is put up then there is a loss, so we have to demand compensation for that loss. 

Mr. Woodward said that there are a lot of nontidal mitigation banks. 

Jay Woodward (inaudible not at the microphone) 



 

31 
 

Mr. Howeth said the case that Bud Allen had a boat ramp a month ago showed where he 

showed pictures of, and it may come back before the board again.  Some days we never get to 

zero in the past we have gotten it down to 10 square feet and if it didn’t, we would dig up 10 

square feet from the bank and produce its elevation down, stick some plants in it and we will 

never look at it again.  All I am suggesting is that we don’t change our methodology in how we 

review theses just to add one more plug in the bag of golf clubs that says if somebody can’t 

physically dig it down, they need 10 square feet would we consider it.  Right now, we don’t 

allow considering it. 

Mr. Goff said that we have never considered it so in the guidelines ideally its onsite if not ones 

right within the local watershed we can.  The last resort is to go to the mitigation bank which is 

a really good thing and I think the right answer is we are willing to entertain that if that’s the 

only option.  The Southerland case is called for and we should be requiring some kind of 

mitigation.  I’m ok with the mitigation bank. 

Chairman Howeth said that we have never done this before in the past.  We were asked many 

years ago by Randy to create the mitigation fund and the county administrator then which I 

think was Gary Allen or it could have been someone else, but they said no.  It just dies right 

there, and I never agreed with that.  Now we have different administration and thinking of the 

board.  We may want to revisit that as an option.  This is not a discussion we will solve tonight.  

This discussion will take six months between us to try to figure it out because you asked a very 

good question and if we get it, we will have to plan it in pecking order on how we would have 

to utilize it.  Chairman Howeth says he agrees that it needs to be the last choice.  Just because 

you can go in that river system to see where these banks around where you can buy credit on 

the Eastern Shore doesn’t do us any good. 

Mr. Goff said that he thought the banks already existed. 

Chairman Howeth said that Nate has a spot underneath the bridge that he can turn into a 

wetland bank.  I said this is when the county was thinking about buying that piece of land and 

we could have half a million.  We could make a little bit of money if the county turned it into a 

bank. 

Jay Woodward (inaudible) 

Jay Woodward said that the Southerland’s after seeing the revised drawings they are at zero 

wetland impact.  It is really out of your jurisdiction. 

Chairman Howeth said that it was in our jurisdiction but its not.  Southerland was pushing the 

issue of just buying credits in the bank and filling it all the way out to the bulkhead and we 

didn’t agree with everything that was said to what was there, but the thought of a bank is a 

good thought. It wasn’t my opinion only.  It wasn’t a good application.  We said to revise the 

drawing to zero.  The thought was I’m going to buy credits somewhere else. I’m going to fill all 



 

32 
 

this in.  It is what we have never done before. The applicant has revised, and we have already 

approved it.  They revised it to zero. 

Jat Woodward (inaudible) 

Mr. Goff asked the question, “Are we having a conversation?” 

Mr. Parker said that this is a long conversation we have had but much needed.  Mr. Parker said 

that he appreciated what Kevin said and he agrees with what everyone has said, and Mr. Parker 

also agrees it is the last option. 

Chairman Howeth said that there are two more meetings this year, one the end of October and 

the other December 7 and that is it until the end of January. Chairman Howeth said that as of 

the meeting tonight the documents have not been received from Flournoy and that if not 

received within the next five hours, he has missed the deadline.  Chairman Howeth said that 

there is an active violation, and we will take that up in October.  The board has done everything 

they can do.  We need to do all we can for the citizens.  We have to do what we are supposed 

to do.  Chairman Howeth said that he is putting the board on notice that he is taking it up in 

October.  Chairman Howeth also said by the end of January or February he wants the board to 

take time to do research on mitigation banks. 

ADJOURN 

Having no further business, Mr. Bates made a motion to adjourn. Mr. Parker seconded the 

motion. AYES: 5 NAYES: 0 ABSENT: 1 

 

 

 

____________________________________           

Jeffrey Howeth, Chairman 

 


